
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SECOND SESSION 

Of!icial Records* 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 20th MEETING 

Chairman: Mrs. MAIR (Jamaica) 

CONTENTS 

THIRD COMMITTEE 
20th meeting 

held on 
Monday, 17 October 1977 

at 3 p.m. 
New York 

AGENDA ITEM 85: UNITED NATIONS DECADE FOR WOMEN: EQUALITY, DEVELOPMENT AND PEACE: 
REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) 

ORGANIZATION OF WORK 

* Tlus record IS subject to correctiOn CorrectiOns should be mcorporated m a copy of 
the record and should be sent wzthin one week of the date of publication to the Ch1ef, 
Official Records Ed1ting Section, room A- 3550. 

Correctwns will be 1ssued shortly after the end of the sess1on, in a separate fasc1cle for 
each Committee. 

77-57186 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.3/32/SR.20 
20 October 1977 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

I .. 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 2 

The meetin~ was called to order at 3.10 p.m. 

AGENDA ITE!1 85: UNITED NATIONS DECADE FOR Wm1EN: EQUALITY, DEVELOPHENT AND PEACE: 
REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A/32/3, chap. VI, sect. B, A/32/174, 
A/32/175, A/32/211, A/32/216~ A/32/218) 

1. Miss RICH'I'ER (Argentina) said that her country 1-ms prepared to support the 
draft Convention on the Elimination of Discrimination against Bomen (A/32/218, 
annex IV), even though the text before the Committee contained a number of 
provisions already embodied in various international instruments, many of which 
had been ratified by Argentina. She hoped that a universally acceptable text 
could be adopted at the current session and would do everything she could to ensure 
that it was not too limited in scope, since that ·Fould be a backward step in the 
efforts of the international community to eliminate all forms of discrimination, 
including discrimination on the grounds of sex and civil status. Since the 
comments on articles 6, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 15 of the draft Convention which the 
Argentine Government had submitted to the Secretary-General had not yet been 
published, she would like to inform the Committee of some of them. 1'/ith regard 
to article 6, all provisions of national law - and not simply of penal codes -
which constituted discrimination against women should be repealed. Argentina 
had proposed a mandatory form of words for article 7, concerning exploitation of 
prostitution of women, bearing in mind the need to eliminate that abominable 
practice and the fact that the General Assembly, in its resolution 317 (IV), had 
recommended the Convention for the Suppression of the Traffic in Persons and of 
the Exploitation of the Prostitution of Others. Article 9, paragraph 3, should be 
deleted. The provisions of article 12 should cover the most disadvantaged groups, 
whether in rural or urban areas. 

2. \vi th regard to the Programme for the United Nations Decade for Women, she 
would like all the regional commissions and specialized agencies to inform the 
Committee of the actions they had taken to implement Assembly resolution 3520 (XXX). 

3. Argentina, which had supported Economic and Social Council resolution 
2062 (LXII) concerning preparatory work for the Horld Conference of the United 
Nations Decade for Homen, 1980, attached prime importance to regional contributions 
both to the Decade and to the Conference. Accordingly, in 1976 it had served as 
host country for the first regional seminar to be held during the Decade. It was 
tbe seat of the multinational OAS Homen's Centre and had established an applied 
laboratory of technical education for women in Buenos Aires with the aim of 
bringing about the full participation of women in the national development process. 
It would be desirable for both those institutions to maintain close collaboration 
with the International Research and Training Institute for the Advancement of 
·Homen, which it was hoped would become operational shortly. 

4. Hr. "U:EF..ASH~GHE (Sri Lanka) said that he would like to begin with a few words 
on social development in general. As the Assistant Secretary-General for Social 
Development and Humanitarian Affairs had pointed out at the 2nd meetin~ of the 
Committee, the ultimate aim of the international development effort was the 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr~ P~erasin~he, Sri Lanka) 

well-being of individuals, and individuals and groups of individuals must be the 
main factors in the formulation of projections, policies and programmes 
(A/C.3/32/SR.2). Care must also be taken not to fragment the various issues 
which made up the well-being of the individual, since that made it difficult to 
co~-ordinate efforts at the international level and see human beings as indi vid.uals 
with all their needs but also with a tremendous potential for action. Social 
development had now become part of national policy in all the developing countries. 
Since gaining independence, Sri Lanka had given high priority to problems of crime, 
the elderly, the youth and community development. He gave a number of examples of 
achievements in those fields, which had been made possible by the assistance his 
Government had received in many ways from the United Nations system, and he 
strongly supported co-ordinated policies and programmes of social development in 
the United Nations. 

5. Turning to the question of the United Nations Decade for vTomen: Equality, 
Development and Peace, he said that a convention on the elimination of 
discrimination against women was long overdue. The Committee should therefore 
give very high priority, in its consideration of item 85, to the draft Convention 
now before it (A/32/218, annex IV), thus complying with the wishes expressed by 
the Economic and Social Council in its resolution 2058 (LXII). He therefore 
suggested that, in the two or three days allotted to item 85 during the current 
month, the Committee should confine its discussions, as much as possible, to the 
draft Convention with a view to adopting it at the present session. The draft 
Convention was a very progressive measure, which had the support of Sri Lanka. 

6. The women of Sri Lanka had been enjoying political, social, economic and 
civil rights for many years. As far back as 1931, women had been given equal 
opportunities to participate with men in the political life of the country. Since 
that time, they had been using their vote in parliamentary and local elections, 
and women had been elected to Parliament and to local government bodies. t1easures 
had been taken to give women equal employment opportunities with men in the 
State service and in the private sector. The proportion of women among doctors 
and lmvyers was very high. They had the right to equal pay with men for equal 
work and had the same pension and provident fund benefits as men. 

7. The rights that the women of Sri Lanka now enjoyed had not been given by 
legislation alone; education had been an important factor. Since 1946, education 
for both sexes had been free from kindergarten to university. There was a high 
nroportion of women in the universities. Higher education among women was 
~esulting in later marriages, which was making a significant impact in lowering the 
population grm-.rth rate. 

8. Sri Lanka was glad to note that international agencies, notably the World 
Bank, were changing their personnel policies to make more room for women. If 
Governments were striving to establish equal opportunities for women, the same 
opportunities should surely be afforded to them in international agencies. 

9. Before the Pledging Conference on the Voluntary Fund for the United Nations 
Decade for Homen was convened on 8 November, an opportunity should be provided for 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 4 

(Hr . .A.merasinghe, Sri Lanka) 

the members of the Third Committee to discuss whatever decisions the Consultative 
Cow.mittee on the Voluntary Fund (A/32/174) found it feasible to make on appropriate 
regional projects which would benefit rural women, poor 1vomen in urban areas and 
other marginal groups of women, especially the disadvantaged, and which were to 
be submitted to the Consultative Committee by each of the four regional economic 
commissions. The Consultative Committee was expected to meet durin~ the current 
month. Since the resources of the Voluntary Fund were limited and the projects 
now being identified would be the first to be financed from the Fund, care must be 
taken to ensure that the resources of the Fund were utilized for the most deserving 
projects with a satisfactory geographical distribution. Such a discussion in the 
Third Committee would provide some useful guidelines for the selection and 
formulation of projects bJr the regional commissions, and would give a broad 
indication of the funds that would be needed for projects during the Decade. 

10. ~1rs. LORANGER (Canada) expressed the hope that the draft Convention on the 
Elimination of Discrimination against Homen could be adopted at the current 
session; for, despite the efforts made to improve the condition of women, a great 
deal remained to be done. It was true that some women were attending the Third 
Committee, but hovr many were involved in the decision-making process, either at 
the United l'Tations or in their own countries? How many vere really participating 
in the process of develonment? However, international instruments would not change 
the rights of vromen unless States were willing to avoid perpetuating situations 
which had become unacceptable. States could and should act nmr; they need not 
wait for the coming into force of the Convention in order to correct imbalances 
with respect to vromen. 

11. Canada would have preferred a text whose basic objective would have been to 
promote equality between the sexes rather than to accord special benefits to women, 
but that would not prevent it from supporting it. On the other hand, it hoped that 
the proposed 1-rorking group would be constituted shortly and would be able to 
improve the text from a legal as well as a drafting perspective. Some articles 
were so ambiguous that they could hardly be acceptable; for example, article 16 
suggested that States might decide that their legislation was more favourable to 
women, so that the Convention could be disregarded. Too many laws or conventions 
which had been meant to grant benefits to women had done no more than perpetuate 
discriminatory practices and lower the status of women. Canada would therefore 
wish to see that article modified or deleted. It also hoped that article 9 could 
be made less compulsory, since it considered that the granting of privileges to 
the alien spouses of nationals constituted discrimination on the basis of marital 
or civil status, which should be specifically mentioned in the preamble. That 
form of discrimination affected women more often than men. An example was in the 
extending of credit, where married women faced considerably greater barriers than 
did single women. 

12. Canada had recently taken some initiatives vrhich were consistent with the 
spirit of the draft Convention and which might be of interest to other States. In 
the field of legislation, the federal Government had nassed the Human Rights Act -
and she stressed the word ''Human" - which prohibited discrimination on the grounds, 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 5 

(Mrs. Loran~er, Canada) 

inter alia, of sex and marital status and provided for equal pay for work of equal 
value. The Human Rights Commission, which was charged with enforcing that 
legislation by hearing personal complaints, was studying how the latter principle 
could best be translated into practice. In the administrative field, the machinery 
at the federal level which dealt >rith status of women questions had recently been 
strengthened. At a time when most of the recommendations of the Royal Commission 
)f Enquiry on the Status of \{omen had been implemented, a new blueprint for 
national action in that field was being developed. There had been major changes 
in citizenship legislation, in that men and women were now treated equally with 
respect to both the acquisition of citizenship and the transmittal of citizenship 
to their children. 

13. Canada was fully involved in the implementation of the Programme for the 
Decade for Women and would participate in all international activities organized 
in that context. 

14. Ms. HORLEN (Sweden) said that although women's work was as necessary as that 
of men, it was not yet fully appreciated by society; women were often exploited 
and relegated to a subordinate role. The oppression of women obviously took 
different forms according to the economic, cultural and social conditions in which 
they lived, and there were no general measures applicable everywhere; nevertheless, 
economic, social and sometimes even legal, discrir1ination against wumen was a 
phenomenon that existed everywhere in the world. Reforms in various fields, such 
as employment, education and the law, were therefore necessary. But f·Jrmal 
equality was not enough and could not by itself solve all prc,blems; that equality 
must be translated into everyday reality. 

15. International Women's Year had spotlighted the injustices suffered by women 
and had aroused high hopes. If th'Jse hopes were not to be crushed, all States 
must redouble their efforts to implement the plan of the United nations Decade for 
Women. Sweden, for its part, had taken steps in that direction by prcceeding t( 
draw up a national plan of action. 

16. The promotion of equality for women was inseparably linked with the struggle 
for economic and social development and justice between countries) but it must be 
recognized that economic and social development was not enough to improve the 
situation of women and guarantee them increased justice and equality. Hodern 
economic grmrth and the process of industrialization might deprive women of their 
traditional productive roles and relegate them to a marginal and dependent 
existence. Therefore economic and social justice for women must go hand in hand 
with over-all economic progress. That made it nec~ssary to undertake measures 
and adopt programmes to help women participate actively in the development process 
by guaranteeing them, inter alia, equal access to education and vocational training. 

17. Furthermore, certain traditions and customs, such as female circumcision, 
which had been condemn~d jn principle by the world corrmunity but were rarely 
referred to in public, were contributing to discrimination based on sex. 
Increased efforts must nov be made, therefore, to put an end to that particularly 
cruel form of sex discrimjnation. 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SH.20 
:Cnslish 
Page 6 

( Bs . Horlen, SHeder~) 

18, Heferring to the draft -.,,, vention on the :fi:limination of Discrimination against 
\vomen, nov before the Committee, she recalled that as a member of the Commission on 
the Status of Homen, S1·reden had actively participated in the preparation of that 
document, ivhich -vras based on the ltlorld Plan of Action adopted at the iJorld 
Conference of International Homen 1 s Year and on the ILO Declaration and Plan of 
Action on Equality of Opportunities and Treatment for Homen ·Harkers. The essence of 
those documents 1vas that equality beti·reen men and ivomen could not be secured by 
measures aimed at 1-romen only and that sex discrimination was a crime ar;ainst human 
dignity and a violation of the freedom and self·-determination of the individual. 
All forms of discrimination based on sex had to be eliminated, no matter Hhere they 
materialized or against vrhom they were directed. SiVeden ivould therefore have 
preferred a draft convention on the elimination of sex discrimination, and it wished 
to reaffirm the principle of the equality of men and vromen. In its viev, 
regulations adopted specifically to protect -vromen -vrere inappropriate· instead, 
protective regulations should apply equally to men and to ivomen. To be sure, 
special provisions 1-rere needed to protect Homen against dismissal by reason of 
nregnancy and to guarantee their right to pre~nancy and maternity leave: however, 
men as well as women should be ~iven an opportunity to reconcile their employment 
and parenthood responsibilities. 'That principle ~-ras reflected in the \rlorld Plan of 
Action and should also be expressed in the draft Convention. 

19. l'1oreover, the implementation of the Convention 'muld depend lar17,ely on the 
effectiveness of revieu and follov--un mechanisms, Hhich in their present form vere 
not forceful enough, It vould be preferable to make them similar to the mechanisms 
nrovided for in the International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of 
Racial Discrimination and in the International Covenant on Civil and Political 
nir;hts. 

20. rir. rmRICEL (Federal Republic of Germany) saifl that the draft t;onvention before 
the Committee (A/32/218) represented a balanced compromise uhich should mal~e it 
possible to adopt the Convention quickly and open it for si~nature. The draft 
f11rther developed existing United Nations instruments and made them more precise· it 
re fleeted the advances made in the national legislation of various countries and the 
graving interest in equal rights for men and women. It also took into account social 
an 1 economic develo"(lments 1;.rhich had chane;ed the situation of -vromen and Hhich nou 
necessitated changes in their lee;al status. The draft contained some provisions 
relating to nrivate lm·r" particularly family lm.r, in matters such as women's 
property rights and their right to transmit their nationality to their children. 
Horeover > in accordance -vrith naravraph 13 of the Proclamation of Teheran adonted on 
13 Hay 1968, the draft emphasized economic, social and cultural ri,qhts in orCler to 
meet the urgent need for improvinr; the conditions of life for women. 

21. The objective 1vas to ensure that the States Parties committed themselves to 
taldng aJ>propriate measures, including legislative measures, to eliminate 
discrimination ae:ainst women. 'fi'or that reason_ even those States vrhich had practical 
and legal difficulties to overcome in that field should be able to aClopt the 
Convention. ~1oreover, the ad hoc Group nrovided for in article 19) paragraph 3, 
seemed to be an appropriate body for examining and evaluating the reports to be 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 7 

(Hr. Merkel, Federal Republic 
of Germany) 

submitted by States Parties on the implementation of the Convention. The mixed 
composition of the Group represented an important improvement and deserveo the 
Committee's support. Accordinely, the Federal Republic of r.ermany appealed to all 
States for speedy adoption of the draft Convention. 

22. The rights enunciated in the draft Convention were already effectively 
recognized in the Federal Republic of Germany, where legislation guaranteed women 
rishts equal to those of men· hmrever , in order to make that principle still more 
a reality in practice, his Government 1.ras seeking to promulgate laws 1.rhich vrould 
take due account of the particular circumstances of women and to amend laws based on 
the principle of the traditional division of roles between the sexes, with a view to 
enabling men and women to participate on a fully equal basis in all activities of 
family life, employment and public life· education and information campaigns had been 
initiated for that purpose. A commission, consisting of both parliamentarians and 
experts, had been established by the Federal Parliament to strengthen the role of 
women and had already submitted its first interim report. 

23. The Programme for the United Nations Decade for Homen deserved support, \·rith the 
exception of some references to earlier resolutions concernin~ which the Federal 
Republic of Germany maintained its reservations. That Programme woulrl make it 
possible to promote the equality of men and "\Wmen in all countries, anr-1 it might be 
desirable if the bulletin published by the United Nations on the occasion of 
International Homen's Year 1.rere reissued from time to time to inform the public 
concernin0 its implementation. In order to improve the effectiveness of the studies 
proposed in the Programmec they should be sunnlemented by practical testine; 
accompanied by scientific research, 

24. At the bilateral level, his Government had co-operated vri th non~-governmental 
orc;anizations in the developine; countries and had committed or paid in 1976 
appropriations amounting to DH 40 million in order to help those organizations carry 
out more than 100 projects relevant to 1vomen. A notable example was a project to 
improve the water supply in Kenya's Kandara district, for vhich his Government had 
contributed DH 7 million. At the multilateral level, the Government of the Federal 
Republic of Germany had, inter alia, made special-purpose contributions amounting to 
m1 250 ,000 for a trainine: and acvanced-traininp: programme for rural women. It had 
also been host to a conference of UNESCO exnerts 1.rhich had dra1m up a programme for 
the exchange of information betueen vromen of developing and industrial countries. 
In addition, it had participaterl in the elaboration an0 adoption of various documents 
and legal instruments clesir:ned to eliminate discrimination ar:ainst women in traininp; 
and employment , 

25. The Federal Republic of Germany attached great importance to the I.Jorld 
Conference on the United Nations necade for Homen and would lil\:e to participate ln 
its preparation. 

26, It Helcorned the establishment of the International Research and Training 
Institute for the Advancement of Homen in Teheran. 

I ... 



A/C. 3/32/SR, 20 
English 
Pae;e 8 

(Hr, lJerkel, Federal F\enublic 
of Germany) 

27. In view of the worlc ac co• · ~-ished by the Commission on the Status of Homen, the 
existence of that body seemed justified so long as the equality of vromen had not 
been completely achieved all over the 1-rorld, The Federal Republic of Germany 
therefore regretted that the Economic and Social Council at its sixty-second session 
had failed to adopt resolution X proposed by the Commission. 

28. Hrs. HAIJ-vlEGGEN (Netherlano_s) said that she would confine herself to a few 
e;eneral observations, since in her delegation's vie1-r a discussion of the draft 
Convention on the Elimination of Discrimination against 1i1omen should be carried out 
by a workine; group, as recommended by the Economic and Social Council at its sixty
second session: moreover, the Netherlands had submitted detailed comments on the 
question, which -vrere contained in the Secretary-General's report (A/32/218). The 
draft Convention vras the result of extensive deliberations and consultations, and 
an attempt had been made to prepare a text which vrould do justice to the legitimate 
aspirations of -vromen livine; in countries with hie;hly eli verse cultures and traditions. 
'I'he draft uas therefore necessarily a compromise, but a positive and constructive 
compromise. It vras a balanced and inspiring document that would be of e;reat help 
to those countries that 1dshed to endeavour sincerely to eliminate discriminatory 
la,rs and socio--cultural rules in their society and to establish programmes aimed at 
changing and advancing the role of 1wmen, enabling them to exercise all their 
rights~ fulfil their appropriate social role and participate actively in national 
development. 

29. The purpose of the draft Convention uas to improve the status of 1wmen, an 
essential stel) toHards recognition of the equal dignity of men and women. In her 
delegation's vieH an examination of the status of men, and in particular the 
traditional division of labour between men and women in the family and in society, 
v7ould be a decisive stage in the emancipation process· for that reason, instead of 
referring ln the draft Convention only to the equality of 1-roman with man, it would 
1Je better to speak of the equal dignity of man and woman. 

:;r) .. Furthermore, the draft seemed to have some weak spots 1-ri th regard to procedures 
fol' its implementatiorL The Netherlands Hould therefore support any initiative that 
co-,_,ld mal~e the draft more effective in that area. Homen 1 s organizations should be 
cal_led upon for help, since they could make a useful contribution to the effective 
impJementation of the Convention. In spite of those reservations, she hoped that 
the draft Convention would be adopted by the General Assembly at its current 
session, for it uould help to improve the well-1:leing of all manlc:ind. 

31. Hiss CAO--PINNA (Italy) said that her Government had recently proposed to 
Parlia~ent the adoption of comprehensive legislative measures to ensure full 
equality of men and -vwmen in the field of labour, including the establishment of 
administrative sanctions in case of violation. The bill, 1-rhich had been presented 
by the 11inister of Labour, the first voman to be a member of the Government, and the 
neu family legislation enacted in 1975 \·Tere a clear expression of the grmring 
importance that the elimination of de facto or de .4ure discrimination against -vromen 
had gained in Italy. The ao_option of an international instrument in that field 

/. 00 



A/C.3/32/SR.2n 
Enp:lish 
Page 9 

(~iss rao-Pinna..::._li§l:ly) 

·would mal<;:e it possible to attain that e;oal more rapidly. Indeed, the enactment of 
national legislation on discrimination, of whatever type, was not enough in itself 
to eliminate deep-rooted prejudices. 

32, Italy supported the draft Convention on the Elimination of Discrimination 
against Homen (A/32/218). It had some reservations on a few articles concerning 
questions of nationality but hoped that it would be possible to find more flexible 
formulas vhich could be accepted by all. The compromise solution proposed for the 
implementation of the Convention uas more acceptable to the majority of delepations 
than a system of international control similar to that in force for the Convention 
on the Llirnination of All Forms of Racial Discrin1ination and the International 
Covenant on Civil and Political Rirhts. Her delegation hoped that the fact that 
only a very limited number of countries had submitted comments to the Secretary
General in accorci.ance vith Economic and Social Council resolution 2058 (LYII) vould 
not vrevent the proposed uorldnc; group~ and then the Comi ttee ., from cons iderin~ the 
text of the draft Convention as ranidly as nossible. 

32. Two conclusions could be drmm frof'l the reports of the Secretary-General 
(A/32/174 ancl A/32/175) which uere before the Committee. The first conclusion 
concerned the biennial revieH ano anpraisal of the implenentation of the Horld Plan 
of Action, which uas envisaged as an input to the review and appraisal of the 
International Development Strategy for the Second United Nations Development Decade. 
Parac;raphs 12 ano 13 of document A/32/175 indicated that the bodies entrusted 1rith 
that review, namely, the Committee on Developrnent Planning and the Coml'1ittee on 
Revieu and Arpraisal, had not drmm any benefit from the information nrovioed to 
them by the Centre for Social Development and Humanitarian Affairs on the subject of 
the mo.in trends and nolicies rer;arding the status of •romen, particularly the 
intee;ration of ~eromen into the n.ew:lonment process. Her deler,ation felt concerned 
about the lack of coli1nmnication among Secretariat bodies and hoped that it was due 
merely to the fact that the first two years of the Decade for Homen hac1. been used at 
all levels for preparatory vrork only. 

3L1.. The seconn. conclusion concerned the variety and frequency of requests addressed 
to ITenber States by the Secretary -General for informat~_on on progress in imorovinv 
the status of women. The detailed questionnaire prepared by the Secretariat ancl 
recently circulated to Governments in implementation of Economic and Social Council 
resolution 20h0 (LYII) vras desirned to facilitate the vrorJr of !1ember States and 
enable the Commission to make effective use of the information received, hut it Fas 
rathe?r lonr: and complicated) and the Commission on the Status of \,Tomen was unli;cely 
to have very many replies for the comprehensive revieu it Has to unn.erta};:e at the 
bec;inning of 1978. It 1vould therefore be advisable for the review and ap-praisal of 
the Horld Plan of Action to be made at the middle of the Decade for Homen, taking 
into account the Conference +,o be held in 1980) since social phenomena oid not evolve 
so rapidly as to allow a sound assessment of progress made in tuo years at the 
national level. 

35, Her delec.;ation '-Tished to corrmend the Consultative Committee on the Voluntary 
Fund for the United nations Decade for How:n for the way in Hhich it hac. conducted 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 10 

(Miss Cao-Pinna, Italy) 

the work of its first ses sian. It supported the establishment of the International 
Research and Training Institute for the Promotion of Homen and believed that the 
Pledgine; Conference to be held on 8 November would indicate how soon that project 
could be realized. 

36. ~s. JITORTHEN (Denmark) said that despite all that had been done over the course 
of a decade to promote the cause of 1vomen and their participation in the over-all 
development process~ in many spheres nothing had changed. In public life, at the 
United Nations for example -with the exception of the Third Corrmittee, where there 
Here nearly as many women as men ~· the composition of the various committees and 
bodies showed clearly that the objectives of the Declaration on the Elimination of 
Discrimination against Women had not yet been attained. Throughout the 1rorld, 
access to c1ecision-maldng posts was still easier for men. That was also true in 
Denmark_ where - contrary to popular belief about the privileged position of Nordic 
Homen - according to a survey published in 1976 by the Danish Council on Equality, 
the average proportion of -.;-ramen in the executive bodies of the administration 1vas 
only 8.6 per cent. It was hoped that as a result of the recommendations of that 
Council, women uould be employed more frequently in future, but the results 
achieved thus far, for example, in the United Nations, Here not very encouraging. 

37. One of the reports before the Fifth Committee (A/32/146) stated that in 1976 
there had been an increase of 58 per cent in the number of women candidates for 
Secretariat or technical co·-operation posts, compared with an increase of 5 per cent 
in the number of men candidates. It should, however, be pointed out that those 
percentages were based on a total of 350 -.;vomen candidates compared 'IVith over 5 )000 
men candidates, Furthermore, of the 387 candidates recommended by Hember States for 
Professional posts in the Secretariat only l~l were 1vomen, and most applications from 
i·Tomen were for jobs in the social-science and information sectors. In aooition, as 
earlier reports had shmm: -vromen did not remain in their ,jobs as lonr; as men· that 
uas in fact, true of the labour market as a ~Vhole. 

38. According to a recent ILO report o 7 million -.;wmen in a score of Hestern 
countries had lost their jobs during the economic crisis of recent years. The 
percentage of unemployed women was dispronortionately high in comparison with the 
number of ~-romen in the total labour force. It ~Vould be useful to analyse the basic 
reasons for that phenomenon, uhich could vary from one country to another, in order 
to help Governments in formulating their employment policies. According to ILO, 
Homen not only uere the first to lose their jobs in cases of economic recession but 
also had greater difficulty than men in finding neH jobs when the situation improved, 
since the industries in -vrhich they generally found employment were the first to be 
hit by a crisis. It was also cormnon for women to be employed in <4ohs abandoned by 
men in sectors vrhich had become less ''ell paid, ~-rhile r11en tended to supplant women 
in sectors uhich acquired prestire. 

39. She believed that in order to remedy that state of affairs, uomen must first 
of all be given the same educational and professional training opportunities as men, 
including opportunities for retraining so that they would be able to return to work 
after a few years' absence. Furthermore, vTorking 1-romen should be relieved of their 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.2C 
J;;nglish 
Pa17e ll 

(I Trs _ _.,_::.:_2:rthen , Den~arJ:) 

domestic and fanily tasl;:s, since Creche and nursery Services, desDite their 
usefulness~ -vrere not sufficient. 1 Ten and uomen should share o.orJestic tas 1"S and 
that necessitated a change in attitudes tmmrds sex roles. Moreover, since the 
vomen ui th the lmrest levels of education vrere ahrays those \·Tho Here uorst hit hy 
unemployment, r;irls should be able to devote as many years as boys to their stur1ies 
and should be encouraged to choose so---called ' 1J21ale 11 professions. 'I'hBt required an 
ec'J.ucational system that clid not perpetuate stereotypes based on sex. 'l'o t"f}e.t end, 
her Government had recently appointed a co:rnmission of 10 mern.bers, includin,re seven 
nomen to mah:e proposals aimed at chane;ing those practices in the system 'ThiclJ 
accounted for the existine; differences betueen the sexes in respect of choice of 
education and career patterns. 

40, Thus, her Government attached sreat importance to item 85_ and narticularly to 
the draft Convention on the :Slir'lination of Discrimination against Homen, vhich. 
·while not perfect; contained the essential elements of a progressive:: policy to 
benefit ivomen. It therefore hoped that there Houle_ not be too many amenC1ments to 
the initial text. Her delegation, -crhich \Wuld participate in that snirit in the 
o.iscussions of the vrori:ine; groun to be established, 1wuld, ho<·rever, prefer the 
expression ;;eoual status of wom~n and men 11 to the expression "discri~ination against 
uomenc and suggestecl mal~inc; a chanc:e in the title of the Cornrention to tJ1at effect. 

4L Tliss VER :CLST (Belgimn) stated that the principal achievement of 1977 1.·rithin 
the frame~-rork of the United 'T8.tions Decade for l:TorJ.en, should be the adontion of the 
Convention on the Elimination of Discrimination against Homen, Her d elep,ation honerl 
that the open ended Horlzing c;roup, uhich the ~conomic and Social Council bad 
recommende0 should be set up to enable all countries •risl1inp; to do so to contribute 
to the final text of the clraft, uould bec;in its work Hithout delay, if possible on 
Friclay 21 October. Belc;ium 0 which had tal:.en e.n active part in the formulation of 
the clraft Convention in the Commission on the Status of Fomen. an-rroveo of the text 
as a vhole. althoup;h it keenly rc::r·Tetted that no provision •·ras made for TilR.chinery 
to deal Hith complaints - either from indivirluals or from States concerninp, 
c1iscri;-.1ination ac;ainst ITOi"'len" Ho•rever 9 her delegation uoulcl. not raise those 
questions ae;ain at the current session, so as not to hinder the adoption of the <lraft 
Convention but it reserved the ric;ht to revert to the point later by reCJ_uestinr 
revision of the Convention, as provided for in draft article 18. 

42. In order to eliminate the last reiPaininp; lec:al inequalities beti·Teen men anc1 
110men, in accorclance Hith the objectives of International TToiJen · s Year anc!. the Decc.cJe 

for Homen, Belc;ium had adontecJ legislation establishing the equality of father ancl 
not her in the matter of res::>onsihili ty over the persons anr1 nronerty of their TJinor 
children, whether the TJarents 'Tere livinc; together o:r ::~part \ foct of 1 ,Tul~r lS'7!') 
~~1-Joiishiw- the rerncinin: discrirnir:.ation h:ctFeen f1l.t0er ,"'Jlcl rotller uith re("'r0 to 
tlK CU2toc'" cf' thecic chilr'lrcn (_~ct of ]Ji 1 '2.rch 1CJ75) ,'Jnd T'12]-j_D~ both fct)ler 2l'C' 

'"'Other lic.ble for (1_~l'"2.('"e CaUoec1 rv their roj_r,or cbilr'lreC"l ( ~ct of '~ Julv 1~77), 
I c'·r,inistrati ·rc: !".easure:s of r..c-· lc::;s j_F0ortance ha.c1 c.l2o lJeen adontec'_ 0 

I 0,. 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 12 

(Miss Ver Elst, Belgium) 

43. Belgium attached the greatest importance to the World Conference of the 
United Nations Decade for Homen, 1980, and would be a candidate for membership 
in the Preparatory Committee to be established in 1978. 

44. The five members of the Consultative Committee on the Voluntary Fund for 
the United Nations Decade for Women should be commended for having determined 
that 85 per cent of the resources already available would be allocated to 
development assistance projects affecting women. At its third session, the 
c~nsultative Committee would have to take decisions on the proposals from the 
regional economic commissions concerning the specific projects to which they 
wished to apply the funds allocated to them. As a token of its confidence in the 
Consultative Cow~ittee, the Belgian Government had already decided to make a large 
contribution to the Fund, the amount of which would be officially announced at 
the Pledging Conference to be held on 8 November 1977. 

45. Mrs. MISHRA (Nepal) said she would like to thank all concerned, throughout 
the world, for their efforts in implementing the resolutions adopted by the 
United Nations to raise the status of women. Nepal, like many other countries, 
bad observed International Women's Year with enthusiasm. During the Year important 
measures bad been taken and, in particular, legislation designed to improve the 
status of women had been promulgated. Under Nepalese law, no discrimination 
could now be made between men and women. 

46. Nepal bad realized in 1975 that the activities initiated for International 
Women's Year should be institutionalized by incorporating them into the very 
process of development. The aim had been not merely to highlight the need to 
recognize women's rights and awaken women to their opportunities and 
responsibilities, but also to bring about their participation in the development 
effort, so that men would realize that women had a real role to play in society 
and 1romen themselves would begin to fulfil that role, The results bad been very 
encouraging. 

47. In connexion with the United Nations Decade for Women, a women's services 
co-ordination sub-committee bad been formed in 1977 as part of the Social Services 
Co~ordination Committee, which functioned under the chairmanship of Her Hajesty 
Queen Aisbwarya. Similarly, the Nepalese Constitution provided for a Women's 
Organization whose duty it was to involve women in the development of the country 
and to assist the local political units in mobilizing the general public. The 
National Planning Commission bad also started to give due attention to the 
improvement of immen' s status in Nepal, All those offices bad been conducting 
various activities in order to contribute to the progress of women and their 
greater participation in development activities in accordance with the Horld Plan 
of Action. The Nepalese Government, wi tb the help of USJL D, was currently 
conducting an in-depth study on the status of women in the socio-economic 
development of Nepal. The purpose of the project was to collect information on 
the legal, social and economic position of 1wmen in traditional and modern 
Nepalese society and to assess their contribution to the national economy, not 
only in their roles as mothers and home-makers, but also as an important com:vonent 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 13 

(Mrs. Mishra, Nepal) 

of the active labour force. The survey planned to complete its report within 
two years. A seminar had also been held in Nepal in 1977 to discuss an integrated 
programme for women in connexion with the Decade for Women. 

48. A national plan of action would be formulated in connexion with the Decade 
for Homen, and Nepal anticipated full co-operation from the United Nations and its 
various agencies and services in that regard. It should also be noted that the 
Regional (Asia-Pacific) Seminar on the Participation of Women in Political, 
Economic and Social Development had been held in February 1977. Nepal hoped that 
all concerned nations would give due attention to the successful implementation 
of the recommendations adopted by the Seminar. 

49. However, legal provisions and programmes of action were inadequate to achieve 
the objectives of International Homen's Year and the United Nations Decade for 
Women. As Her Majesty Queen Aishwarya had noted on the occasion of International 
Women's Year, education was a vital factor for enabling women to gain equality 
with men and contribute effectively to development. Nepal was accordingly 
encouraging women to improve their education, by such measures as providing 
schularships. Homen's training centres and rr.uthers· clubs had been established 
and lvould be gradually expanded. Projects for training young girls from remote 
villages to become primary-school teachers were sponsored jointly by UNICEF and 
UNESCO. 'rhree hundred vromen teachers had been trained under that programme. 
UNICEF was also giving considerable assistance to the strengthening of a community
development-oriented training project launched by the Nepalese Government for rural 
1wmen, in which emphasis was placed on nutrition and child care. 

50. In view of the problems, such as inadequate supply of drinking-water and the 
absence of electricity, which prevented women in rural areas from acquiring the 
additional knowledge and skills they needed, the development projects sponsored 
by UHDP, UNICEF and specialized agencies like UNESCO, WHO, ILO and FAO should be 
co-ordinated and operated in a specific area that would mitigate some of the most 
persistent problems of daily life, thereby contributing to meeting the objectives 
of the United Nations Decade for Women. In addition, more concrete and effective 
results could be achieved if national development programmes were formulated and 
implemented in that spirit. Since it was only through comprehensive research 
work and intensive studies that suitable methods could be devised for bringing 
about women's development or development in any other field, Nepal welcomed the 
establishment in February 1977 of the Asia and Pacific Centre for Women and 
Development, which was expected to contribute a great deal to women's development. 

51. Mr. LUHAT (Malaysia) said that equality and the upgrading of women's status 
did not mean a reversal of roles between men and women but rather a greater 
sharing of responsibilities, both in the home and in society. Women formed half 
the total population of l1alaysia, and unequal opportunities for them would result 
in a huge wastage of human potential for the country's economic and social 
development. Despite a residue of unspoken traditional bias against women, there 
was also growing recognition of their importance as a force for development. 
!1alaysia was still very much an agricultural country, and rural development 
therefore occupied a key position in its national five-year development plans and 

I .. . 



A/C, 3/32/SfL 20 
Ene:lish 
Page 14 

(l1F~ __ 1-.::<.J:hat ,_Ji_~~axsia) 

pro;Jammes ~md the involvement of IWmen in economic and social cbane:;es in rural 
areas was crucial. 

52, v!omen bad successfully e;ained footholds in many areas previously closed to 
them_, For instance, they bad the same political rights as men. There existed 
a ~onsiderable degree of political consciousness among the active women members 
of l-i:'lla.y.sian political partiEs. Both in the cabinet and in Parliament there were 
crornen mer1bers 1vho shouldered responsibilities on an equal foot inc, wi tb their male 
counterparts. In the econo;;1ic field, the fundamental right of 1vomen to eq_ual 
pa7 had been implemented in 1969. The rieo;ht to education was recognized for all, 
because it was a basic req_uirement for the a,ctive and meaningful participation 
of uomen in society, In 1<?76, in accordance wi tb the recommendations of the vlorld 
Plan of Action for the Implementation of the Objectives of the International 
nomen's Year> Malaysia bad established a national Advisory Council on the 
Inte'ration of :Tomen in Development, responsible directly to the Prime Hinister. 
'Ihe fu:r..ctions of the Council included advising the Government on the formulation 
of ~-erislation affecting -vvomen and examininr: pror;ralJlrres which related to women 1 s 
interests. 

)3. 1'1alaysia -vras in favour of the aduption of the draft Convention on the 
Elimination of Discrimination against Homen, 1-rbich \VOUld be an important step 
forvrard in the protection of human rights. 

54 l1r_:_ BAROODY (Saudi Arabia) said that be vas concerned about item 85. In 
-calc_ing t"he major initiative \·ritb re~:;ard to the United Nations Decade for vTomen, 
the T·Testern Pm-rers had souc;ht to impose their vie-vrs about women and their social 
role on other cultures ubich did not necessarily want to follow the example of 
cou!'tries •Jbere the industrial revolution had causecl social upheaval and, in 
particular, had destroyed the family in the broadest sense of the term. 
Especially in African and Asian countries, the family -vras the corner-stone of 
societ:y. 

55. In traditional societies, the main stress was on a 1ro~an"s family 
r•-::S}Kmsibilities, :!omen vere biologically made to be mothers. v-rork -vras difficult 
for them durinG prec;nancy. They also had the tas1: of teaching children a sense 
of social values. That vras why they occupied a privileged, respected position in 
tral~itional societies, a fact not realized by the -vromen's liberation movements, 
-vrhic>1 demanded q_uantitativ·= rather than q_ualitative eq_uality. He denounced the 
pernicious role played by those movements" '>rhich led women to neglect their 
chilrlren, who felt abandoned and might turn to homosexuality. Moreover, sexual 
liberation vras advocated so vridely that pornography uas rife. 

56 The case of unmarried women was differento naturally, they should have the 
safle rights as men, equal pay for eq_ual work and the same employment opportunities. 

57. nor did he believe that uo111en's rie;ht of expression was limited in any way 
ln tlle artistic and intellectual fie10. In any event, society had not been made 
ln c;_ day ancl it would take much longer than a decade or any arbitrarily set time 
to create a new social order. 



ORGANIZATION OF WORK 

A/C.3/32/SR.20 
English 
Page 15 

58, The CHAIRMAN dre-.r attention to the wish expressed by the Human Rights 
Committee in paragraph 185 of its report (A/32/44), which the Third Committee 
had before it in connexion with item 81, that its Chairman should be invited to 
present the annual report of the Human Rights Committee to the General Assembly. 

59. Mr. MOMPOINT (Secretary of the Committee) said that, if the Committee decided 
to invite the Chairman of the Human Rights Committee to present its report, there 
would be financial implications amounting to $2,000 for his travel expenses and 
per diem. However, it would not be necessary to request an additional 
appropriation, since those costs could be absorbed under the budget for the 
biennium 1976-1977. 

60. Mr. SHERIFIS (Cyprus) supported the idea of inviting the Chairman of the 
Human Rights Committee to present its report. 

61. Hrs. HARZAZI (Morocco) pointed out that the Committee already had before it 
the report of the Human Rights Committee, and asked whether there was any pressing 
reason for inviting the Chairman of that Committee, which might create a precedent. 

62. Jhe CHA~Rl1AN suggested that the Director of the Division of Human Ri3hts should 
be asked to explain in greater detail why the Human Rights Co~mittee had expressed 
the wish that its Chairman should be invited to present its report. 

63. Mr. SMIRNOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) supported that suggestion 
and requested that the Committee should not take an immediate decisjon, in erder 
to 8ive delegations time to consider the matter. 

64. Hrs. LORANGER (Canada) asked what the officers of the Committee planned to do 
about the establishment of the workin8 group to study the draft Convention on 
the Elimination of Discrimination against Women. 

65. Jhe CHAIRMAN suggested that the Committee should postpone its decision on 
whether or not to invite the Chairman of the Human Rights Committee until it had 
~ore detailed information from the Secretariat. As to the establishment of the 
workin8 group, the officers would submit their proposals to the Committee on 
llednesday, 19 November, so that the group could begin its work by the end of the 
weeL 

The meeting rose at 5.50 p.m. 


